

PH0698679

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

FOR	VPSL	SE (DNLY	•				
RECE	IVED		FEB	5	1979	ÿ		÷
DATE			•	M	AR	31) 10	79

J

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS

1 NAME

HISTORIC Tensas Parish Courthouse

AND/OR COMMON Same

2 LOCATION

STREET & NUMBER Courthouse Square

1
TRICT
lea1
CODE
107
-

3 CLASSIFICATION

CATEGORY	OWNERSHIP	STATUS	PRESI	INTUSE
DISTRICT	<u>X</u> PUBLIC		AGRICULTURE	MUSEUM
_XBUILDING(S)	PRIVATE	UNOCCUPIED	COMMERCIAL	PARK
STRUCTURE	ВОТН	WORK IN PROGRESS	EDUCATIONAL	PRIVATE RESIDENCE
SITE	PUBLIC ACQUISITION	ACCESSIBLE	ENTERTAINMENT	RELIGIOUS
OBJECT	IN PROCESS	YES: RESTRICTED	X GOVERNMENT	SCIENTIFIC
	BEING CONSIDERED	X YES: UNRESTRICTED	_INDUSTRIAL	TRANSPORTATION
		NO	MILITARY	

4 OWNER OF PROPERTY

NAME Tensas Parish Police Jury

STREET & NUMBER				
Tensas P	arish Courthouse, Cour	rthouse Squar	e	
CITY, TOWN			STAT	E
St. Jose	ph עוכוא	NITY OF		Louisiana
5 LOCATION C	OF LEGAL DESCRIP	ΓΙΟΝ		
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC.	Office of Clerk of Court			
STREET & NUMBER	Tensas Parish Court	House, Court	nouse Square	
CITY, TOWN			STAT	E
	St. Joseph			Louisiana
6 REPRESENTA	ATION IN EXISTING	G SURVEYS		
TITLE Louisiana	Historic Sites Surve	у		
DATE August 19	78	FEDERAL	_XSTATECOUNTY _	LOCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR				
SURVEY RECORDS St.	ate Historic Preserva	tion Office		
CITY, TOWN			STATE	
B	aton Rouge			Louisiana
	-			

7 DESCRIPTION

C	ONDITION	CHECK ONE	DNE	
EXCELLENT XGOOD FAIR	DETERIORATED RUINS UNEXPOSED	UNALTERED XALTERED	<u>X</u> ORIGINAL MOVED	SITE DATE

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Tensas Parish Courthouse is situated on its own block, at the head of a large well treed rectangular park. The area which encompasses the courthouse and the park is well defined from the surrounding residential neighborhood. The park area is included in the nomination because it has always provided a natural view from the front of the courthouse. The boundaries were drawn to exclude some modern one story service buildings to the rear. These buildings, though out of character with the courthouse, only effect the view of the rear facade.

The courthouse itself is square in plan with diagonally set wings at the corners. The large square courtroom occupies most of the upper floor with offices on the ground floor. The ground floor can be entered on all four sides which yields a Greek Cross plancorridor arrangement.

The courthouse has a brick bearing wall structure with sandstone block facing and sandstone columns. Floors are supported by wooden beams which run between the bearing walls.

Each of the three main facades has an attennuated composite order portico with pressed tin ornamentation in the tympanum. These porticoes alternate with the diagonal corner wings in a visually energetic composition. Each of the corners is decorated with raised coining. The two main floors are surrounded by a pressed tin entablature with an egg and dart cornice. This is surmounted in turn by an English Baroque style cupola resting on a heavy base which is faced with a pressed tin ballustrade. At one time the cupola contained a clock with four faces. Although this has been removed it has not had a major impact upon the exterior. Neither has the filling in of two windows on the front facade with sandstone block. The only other exterior change is the addition of a pair of walls at the rear to facilitate deliveries. This, however, does not effect any of the three main facades.

The only noteworthy interior space is the second story courtroom. Although this room has received a new ceiling it still retains all of the original courtroom features including the paneled judge's bench, witness stand and jury box.



SPECIFIC DATES		BUILDER/ARC	HITECT			
				<u></u>		
X _1900-	COMMUNICATIONS	INDUSTRY	X_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT	OTHER (SPECIFY)		
1800-1899	COMMERCE	EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT	PHILOSOPHY	_TRANSPORTATION		
1700-1799	ART	ENGINEERING	MUSIC	THEATER		
1600-1699	XARCHITECTURE	EDUCATION	MILITARY	SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN		
1500-1599	AGRICULTURE	ECONOMICS	LITERATURE	SCULPTURE		
1400-1499	ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC	CONSERVATION	LAW	SCIENCE		
PREHISTORIC	ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC	COMMUNITY PLANNING	LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE	RELIGION		
PERIOD	AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW					

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

1906

Tensas Parish Courthouse has significance in the areas of both "Politics/Government" and "Architecture." Since 1906 it has served as the focal point of parish government--the seat of justice and the meeting place of the Police Jury. The courthouse, in addition, possesses a degree of significance as a fine local example of early twentieth century eclectic architecture. Outstanding architectural features include its English Baroque cupola and also its three porticoes, which are unusually light and finely proportioned considering the period.

P. H. Weathers

In 1905, after a year of discussion, the Tensas Parish Police Jury passed an ordinance providing for the erection of a new courthouse and jail to replace the two-story frame building which had been the parish's original courthouse but was no longer adequate. P. H. Weathers was appointed architect for the new building. Lewman and Company of Louisville, Kentucky put in the lowest bid for construction, and it got the contract. The cost of the courthouse was \$51,137.

The park or parade ground to the front of the building was not landscaped at the time of the original construction. Originally there was a dirt road that led from the levee straight through the parade ground to the courthouse steps. Large elm trees covered the parade ground until the 1930's, when they were all destroyed by disease. Soon afterward, Elliott Coleman replanted the parade ground with live oaks. Today these trees are large and stately, and the central road is gone, making the tract a fine public park.

In the 1930's, an article was published in the <u>Saturday Evening Post</u> concerning the round pedestal table in the lobby of the courthouse. The table is solid oak, supported by a large central leg which has four feet in the "claw and ball" design (see attached drawing). The table was used by the men in the courthouse offices as a poker table. At first they had only a rickety old table to play on, and they soon decided that they needed a better one. To finance it, they placed the winnings of each game in a special kitty and saved until there was enough to buy the table. The article in the <u>Post</u> included pictures of the men sitting around their table playing poker, an activity which they seem to have engaged in rather frequently since there was not much business transacted at the courthouse during the 1930's.

9 MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Brasseaux, Carl A., Glenn R. Conrad, R. Warren Robinson <u>The Courthouses of</u> <u>Louisiana</u>, University of Southwestern Louisiana, Lafayette, La. 1977.

(continued)

10 GEOGRAP	HICAL DATA	L			
	INATED PROPERTY 8				
UTM REFERENCES					
		32			
علنيسا ليشتبليني		13,3000	В		
				EASTING NC	
· Land Land					
	DARY DESCRIPTION	the leves W	achington (Streat and Vence	le Streat
	wall of the co		ashington	Street and Hancoo	ck Street
and the rear	wall of the co	ui chouse.		·	
			_		
LIST ALL	STATES AND COUNT	IES FOR PROPERT	IES OVERLAPPI	NG STATE OR COUNTY	BOUNDARIES
CTATE		0005			2025
STATE		CODE	COUNTY		CODE
STATE	· 0 ===	CODE	COUNTY		CODE
SIAIE		CODE	COONT		CODE
NAME / TITLE	EPARED BY Mac Ward a Regional Plan	nning & Devel	opment Dis		August 25, 1978
	a			TELEPHONE	
2115 Justi	ce Street			STATE	
Monroe				Louisiana	
E SIAIE HI				R CERTIFICAT	
	THE EVALUATED	SIGNIFICANCE OF	THIS PROPERTY	Y WITHIN THE STATE IS:	
NAT	ONAL	STAT	Έ	LOCAL X	_
As the desire stad C				A. (1000	
hereby nominate th	is property for inclusio res set forth by the Nat	on in the NAtional F	Register and cert	Preservation Act of 1966 ify that it has been evalu	(Public Law 89-665), I lated according to the
	SIGNATURE	1 John	1and M	men	
TITLE S	tate Historic H	reservation	Officer	DATE	11 Oct 1978
FOR NPS USE ONLY					
I HEREBY CERTI	FY THAT THIS PROPE	RTY IS INCLUDED	IN THE NATION	ALREGISTER	
	Mu. I.	W NGOD -	\geq		2-20-79
DIBECTOR OFFI	CE OF ARCITED DET	AND HISTORIC PE	CERTIATION	V THEPER OF	THE PATIONAL HEGISTER
ATTEST: Yh	19 - 00.			DATE	3-27-79
KEEPER OF THE	NATIONAL REGISTER	18		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
		, ·			

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM



CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER 9 PAGE 2

Letter from Suzanne Rush, Tensas Parish Courthouse to State Historic Preservation Office (June 5, 1978) with attachments, located in National Register file for "Tensas Parish Courthouse," State Historic Preservation Office, Baton Rouge.



GROUNT FLOOR

TENSAS PARISH

